

Salt Spring Island Housing Action Program Task Force

Date:	Thursday, June 17, 2021
Location:	Electronic Meeting 200-1627 Fort Street, Victoria
Members Present:	Rhonan Heitzmann, Chair James Back Maïkan Bordeleau Bryce Chapman Nejmah Guermoudi Meror Krayenhoff Yvonne Saunders Stanley Shapiro Daniel Wood
Regrets:	Jessica Terezakis Kerrie Proulx, Vice Chair
Absent:	Amber Anderson
Staff Present:	Louisa Garbo, Island Planner Rob Pingle, Planning Team Assistant Sarah Shugar, Recorder
Others Present:	Peter Grove, Local Trustee Laura Patrick, Local Trustee

These minutes follow the order of the agenda although the sequence may have varied.

The meeting was called to order at 1:00 p.m. Chair Heitzmann welcomed staff and Task Force members and acknowledged the meeting is being held in Coast Salish First Nations treaty and traditional territory.

Meror Krayenhoff arrived at the meeting at 1:04 p.m.

1. CALL TO ORDER

1.1 Approval of Agenda

The following items were presented for inclusion in the agenda:

- 3.1.1 Past Housing Studies and Projects Learning from the past Discussion
- 3.2.1 Short-term Immediate Actions

By general consent, the agenda was adopted as amended.

1.2 Approval of Draft Minutes for May 20, 2021 (Attached)

By general consent, the minutes of the May 20, 2021 Housing Action Programs Task Force meeting were adopted.

Maïkan Bordeleau arrived at the meeting at 1:10 p.m.

2. HOUSING ACTION PROGRAM STATUS

2.1 Pilot Project Framework (for discussion only)

Planner Garbo presented a PowerPoint presentation regarding a Tiny-homes Pilot Project.

In discussion the following comments and questions were noted:

- There was a question regarding whether the purpose of tiny home areas would restrict tiny homes to only be permitted in a designated area. Planner Garbo reported tiny homes can be built on any property that meets the zoning requirements.
- A member stated he is a tiny homebuilder, expressed support for a tiny home project and thanked staff for the work on the draft pilot project. The member spoke to a high demand for tiny homes, farmworker housing and community belonging.
- Support tiny home village to include diversity, a variety of home size, social enterprise within the community, a central hub to connect the community, and shared water resources. The member stated she attended a meeting with BC Housing regarding a parcel of crown land as a potential location for a tiny home village. Support was expressed to be inclusive of all ideas.
- There was a question regarding whether a tiny home project would qualify for BC Housing funding.
- A member requested drafts to be circulated prior to meetings to allow members to prepare for the discussion. Planner Garbo reported the draft was not circulated prior to the meeting as it is preliminary and would be circulated if the task force is in support of the pilot project.
- Support was expressed for the tiny home village concept including small gardens and more independent than multi-unit development such apartments. The member suggested small, tiny home villages of 4-5 units for properties greater than 5 acres that could provide additional housing for the community and rental income to property owners.
- Location, use of farmland, transportation routes, densification and use of materials would need to be considered. Tiny Homes require more materials and are not as green as some other models of housing.
- A member expressed support to endorse a tiny home project in principle to move the concept forward. Planner Garbo advised this pilot project is in preliminary stages and further information would be available at the next meeting.

2.2 Built Green Certification program (for discussion only)

Planner Garbo presented a PowerPoint presentation regarding a green building incentive program that may include a third party certification such as Built Green.

In discussion the following comments and questions were noted:

- Green building incentive certification could add a layer of difficulty to builders and contractors when there is already a shortage of local contractors. Support open, non-proprietary green building incentives. Staff will look into incentives to support local contractors.
- Support staff resources to focus on a tiny home project.
- Need to address the complexity of building ecologically and affordably. There was a suggestion to require large houses to follow green building practices or a density bonus program for green building.
- Support further discussion regarding green building incentives to see whether green building aligns with the task force objectives.
- Green building programs have a common difficulty in addressing alternative building construction.
- Green building certification requirements may give preference to some builders and contractors.

2.3 Survey in progress

Planner Garbo reported staff are working on preliminary survey questions based upon a Gabriola Housing Working Group survey and the draft survey questions would be circulated to the task force for review.

3. ROUNDTABLE DISCUSSION

3.1 Communication constraint

Planner Garbo reported legal counsel would attend the next meeting to provide direction regarding meetings and communication.

In discussion the following comments and questions were noted:

- Several members expressed support for in person meetings as soon as possible.
- A member volunteered a venue for future in person meetings. Planner Garbo will look into the potential for in person meeting and report back at the next meeting. Planning Assistant Pingle reported Islands Trust is working towards transitioning back to in person meetings following directives in the BC Restart Plan.
- A member suggested the library meeting room as a public meeting space.
- A member asked for clarification regarding email communications. Planner Garbo will look into circulating information to members.
- There was a suggestion for members to draft a brief, point form document regarding priority issues and opportunities for sharing between members.

3.1.1 Past Housing Studies and Projects – Learning from the past – Discussion

A member spoke to the number of studies that have been completed in the past that have not been acted upon. It is important to clarify the obstacles and identify the most effective way forward.

In discussion the following comments and questions were noted:

- There have been many great ideas regarding how the Islands Trust can assist with a healthy community within a healthy environment. Implementation of the ideas has been difficult. Can staff advise how the task force recommendations would be implemented to the highest order. Planner Garbo reported the Technical Working Group stakeholders can advise on inter-agency collaboration. It is important to focus on tools that are within the jurisdiction of the Islands Trust.
- There are many tools that are within the jurisdiction of the Islands Trust that have not been implemented. The Salt Spring Island Local Trust Committee actions have been incremental and have fallen short. How to implement a broad, long-term vision that will have more impact.
- The Official Community Plan is a means to an end and not an end in itself. Support was expressed to approach sustainability with a focus on people, the environment and the economy. It could be informative to review why past housing projects have not been completed.
- There was a suggestion for the Islands Trust to work with the CRD to implement housing actions.
- The Housing Working Group recommended an inter-agency body such as Housing Authority that could address the problems such water availability.
- There was a suggestion to maintain a list of items that a future housing authority could address. Planner Garbo will provide a list at the next meeting.

3.2 Objectives and Goals (see attachment from Rhonan)

A document entitled Housing Action Program Task Force - Items for Discussion dated June 17, 2021 was presented.

In discussion the following comments were noted:

- A member suggested it is important to know where we are and where we are going.
- A member expressed concern that the 2019 CRD Housing Needs Assessment for Salt Spring Island is out of date for example the average house price at the time of the report was \$500,000 and currently the average house price is over \$1,000,000.
- Staff are working to conduct a carrying capacity analysis for Salt Spring Island.
- There was a suggestion that net impact on the environment per capita is a more useful consideration than carrying capacity. There was a suggestion to have a definition for a dwelling unit that considers the size of the dwelling.
- There was a suggestion to consider how we approach water availability and sewage. Water availability is defined by groundwater and lake water capacity. Sewage capacity is defined by the Ganges wastewater system and septic tanks/fields. It is

important to include the options for composting toilets etc.

3.2.1 Short-term Immediate Actions

Chair Heitzmann presented the following short-term immediate actions:

- 1. Updating the Secondary Suites Bylaw 461 to be more effective and have increased island wide uptake according to points of consideration that this task force can identify.
- 2. Prioritize affordable housing rezoning applications by allowing them to jump the queue and receive most experienced planners attention to support and encourage proponents.
- 3. The Salt Spring Island Local Trust Committee update their policy on bylaw enforcement to suspend action against all nonconforming dwellings (unless there is a serious public safety concern) until measurable improvement of our housing stock availability is achieved.
- 4. Allowing use of "seasonal accommodation" such as resorts and hotels for longer-term use. This is already happening as part of the COVID response and is being used by other jurisdictions in the region. The justification is that long-term use is actually a less intensive use than seasonal occupancy. Maybe this could simply be a temporary use policy while under crisis until consideration of bylaw change to this effect is warranted.

3.3 Identifying issues & possible solutions/alternatives

By general consent, the Housing Action Program Task force members will forward the following to Planner Garbo:

- 1. Long-term, medium-term and short-term objectives; and
- 2. Ideas for immediate action recommendations for the Salt Spring Island Local Trust Committee; and request Planner Garbo to bring back a consolidated check list prior to the next meeting.

4. ADJOURNMENT

There was a suggestion to schedule longer meetings. Staff will look into how to accommodate longer meetings.

The meeting was adjourned at 3:03 p.m.

Rhonan Heitzmann, Chair

CERTIFIED CORRECT:

Sarah Shugar, Recorder